	Comments/Questions
	Comment Resolution

	1. The specifications are clearly noted as "commercial", what is the required quality system? ISO 9001, NQA-1, etc? Furthermore, will DOE O 414.1A, Quality Assurance be required?


	NQA-1 is applicable to equipment for nuclear facilities and is therefore not applicable to this procurement.  Under this contract DOE/NNSA will require compliance with DOE Order 414.1A, (Change dated 7/12/01) “Quality Assurance”.  Utilizing this order provides maximum flexibility for the government to review and approve potential supplier’s quality assurance program without being unnecessarily restrictive on specific QA program compliance or certification.  A DOE/NNSA QA subject matter expert will review supplier submittals, and visit company premises, if deemed necessary, to review management practices and to ensure an acceptable QA process is inherent in the supplier’s management processes.  Compliance is being applied using the graded approach and as such, the contractor shall have a QA program, see revision to the SOW and Reporting Requirements Checklist.  This requirement has been added to the statement of work.  

	2. Because the equipment is designated to be delivered to a number of international locations, what product markings (CE, UL, CSA, Russian safety marks) are required?


	No product markings are required.  Quite the contrary, the specifications shall include a clause to remove all manufacture, model, and specification information from the equipment with the exception of a unique identification code, effectively sanitizing the equipment identification.  The unique code will be negotiated at the time of contract let.  Offerors will not be responsible for international shipping. 

	3. What DOE/NNSA specifications for safety will be required?

Specifically, will the following typical regulations apply?  

a. DOE O 420.1A; Facility Safety

b. DOE N 411.1; Safety Software Quality Assurance Functions, Responsibilities,

and Authorities for Nuclear Facilities and Activities.

c. DOE G 151.1-1; V2 Hazards Survey and Hazards Assessments

d. DOE-HDBK-3027-99; DOE Handbook Integrated Safety Management Systems (ISMS)


	None.  Under this contract DOE/NNSA will not be specifying any requirements for safety at vendor facilities.

DOE O 420.1A is not applicable to non-DOE owned or leased commercial contractor facilities.

DOE N 411.1 is applicable to DOE/NNSA elements that develop, use, assess, establish requirements for, or provide direction for safety software that is used to analyze or guide safety-related decisions or to design or develop safety-related controls for DOE nuclear facilities or activities.  As such, it is not applicable to this procurement.

The purpose of DOE G 151.1-1; V2 is to assist Department of Energy (DOE) Operations/Field Offices and operating contractors in complying with the DOE O 151.1 requirements for Hazards Surveys and facility-specific Hazards Assessments.  DOE O 151.1B Comprehensive Emergency Management System is applicable to all site/facility management contracts associated with the management and operation of DOE/NNSA-owned facilities and associated transportation activities, and in all contracts pertaining to the provision of emergency assistance and is not applicable to the procurement of commercial radiation monitors for the SLD Program.
DOE-HDBK-3027-99; DOE Handbook Integrated Safety Management Systems (ISMS); Team       Leader's Handbook, June 1999 is not applicable to this contract because the contractor will not be required to apply Integrated Safety Management Systems requirements under this contract.

	4. Recent procurement for portal monitors for Bureau of Customs and Border Protection (Battelle RFP No. 8336) required of the supplier:

a. A quality system qualified to national / international standards to meet the bid

specifications.

b. A pre-award evaluation of the technical and quality system capability

c. Special and exacting controls on software development

... will the same measures be included for this procurement?


	a) See #1

b) The DOE/NNSA pre-award evaluation is a robust performance test of the equipment per the monitor specification.  Contractors will not be required to submit a written pre-award evaluation of their equipment. 

c) DOE/NNSA has identified its performance requirements for portal monitor decision making criteria in the specifications, without being prescriptive.

	5. What will the requirements be for the supplier to provide trained, world wide technical support and service assets with established local service outlets?


	Manufacturers will be required to provide a  warranty on equipment for a period of one year from installation.  Technical support will be provided through other means, if determined necessary, and is not included in this procurement.  Please note that  there has been an extended warranty added as a line item in schedule B and is described in the SOW.

	6. The specifications do not have provision for more advanced technology; neither is upgrade ability to "latest technology" discussed. Since the IDIQ could be valid for 5 years, will an obsolescence plan be required, or will a resulting contract provide clause to enable ordering equipment upgrades or "latest technology" at the time of order placement to avoid obsolescence issues?


	An obsolescence plan will not be required.  If it were deemed necessary to provide upgrades the program would look at this as 2nd generation or next generation equipment and consider a remove and replace program.  This does not affect nor is it included in this procurement.

	7. There seems to be a disconnect between the project outlines and what the fundamental specifications require. The specifications focus exclusively on the application for SNM monitors. However, since these portal monitors will be positioned at ports and border crossings, it is expected that border authorities and other interested parties will be concerned about all radiological materials being illegally trafficked, therefore it is expected that these portals should meet SNM specifications and much more. The draft ANSI standard N42.35, the IAEA draft standard on border monitoring, and the draft IEC standard, all require performance above and beyond SNM. Since these standards were developed in part to address border monitoring, will they be requirements of this RFQ?


	No, we will not be imposing additional requirements based on ANSI or draft IAEA standards.  SLD has participated in the development of the IAEA Draft and preceding Technical Documents 13.11, .12, & .13 since 1999.  The intent of the IAEA and then later the ANSI and IEC standards were to develop a minimum set of industry wide guidelines to portal monitors.  The SLD Program performance requirements for SNM detection will meet or exceed all such guidelines.  By meeting the performance standards in this specification monitors will also detect other radioactive material of concern. 

	8. The sections detailing environmental conditions reference ASTM standards which no longer reflect the complete level of compliance required by both the draft ANSI standard N42.35 or the draft IEC 6224 portal standard (Radiation protection instrumentation - Installed Radiation Monitors for the Detection of Radioactive and Special Nuclear Materials at National Borders). For example, these standards outline requirements for portal deployments in demanding operations (large traffic flow, high production rates, extreme environmental conditions, RF, EMI susceptibility etc.).  Will these important new standards be required?


	The DOE/NNSA specification does not generally require compliance with specific standards but requires that equipment meet a set of performance criteria developed to take into account the anticipated operating environments and to demonstrate its effectiveness at detecting nuclear and other radioactive material. Therefore we do not intend to require compliance with these other standards.

	9. Communications protocols and communication means are rapidly evolving in the industry towards more advanced and secure systems than the protocols described in the draft RFP. For this RFP, will these more advanced and robust communication protocols be required?


	The SLD Program system approach is to provide state of the art communication systems and protocols external to the monitor thereby focusing the monitor’s performance on material detection.   Communications systems are being supplied by others.



	10. Manufacturers may not possess the referenced Pu and U standards, will it be possible to provide performance requirements in pure physics: what are the particle flux energy distributions for each source (gamma and neutron) and what are the nominal background energy fluxes (gamma and neutron) in the area to be tested? If it is known that a non-SNM surrogate source can be used for nominal, pre-LANL testing, please provide a reliable rule of thumb. The LANL background radiation profile is significantly different from any other site - time variation in prompt gamma/neutron flux from bursting of the fast reactors, cosmic-ray induced neutron flux is appreciable at 7000 feet, natural radioactivity in the Chico formation, and the proximity of the test area to radioactive waste and radioactive material storage areas.  Are the ASTM performance tests adjusted for these conditions?


	Testing will not be performed outside the normal variation in the nominal background specified.  Rules of thumb for using non-SNM surrogate sources for Pu are publicly available in the ASTM Standards.  There are no surrogate sources for shielded HEU.  The vehicle, pedestrian, and rail monitors required by the SLD program will be used at a wide range of sites throughout the world, with varying background radiation levels from a variety of factors.  As such, it is expected that these portal monitors operate effectively in many different environments.  The background radiation at the TA-18 test site at Los Alamos National Laboratory is one location where the monitors are expected to perform.  Evaluation at LANL, because of its elevation and resulting increased background, represents a potential worst case natural background condition.  All vendor equipment will be tested at the same location under the same conditions, so that all may be evaluated evenly.

	11. Regarding stage 2, can you be more specific on how the LANL evaluations will be conducted, or any scoring criteria that may be used?


	Vendor equipment will be required to meet all the performance specifications outlined in Attachment D of the RFP.  Vendor equipment will be inspected, tested, and rated pass/fail in accordance with the equipment specifications (Attachment B & Portal Com Specs).  A monitor must pass each element of the performance test to successfully complete the performance test.  A failure to pass one or more elements will fail the entire monitor.   

	12. The RFP cover letter (on page 1) encourages "small business lead teams" and "Joint ventures that qualify as small business teams" under the terms and conditions of the RFP that are also based upon commercial item offerings. Similarly, the statement of work, calls for the contractor to "provide equipment, meeting the specifications" and the RFP includes a "vendor" specification compliance checklist. These various RFP passages would encourage a small business that can support the technical service requirements of the RFP, to propose as a prime contractor with a vendor offering of compliant commercial monitoring equipment. In consideration of the aforementioned aspects of the solicitation to encourage a small business commercial product offering, please answer the following question ...

With regard to the Business/Technical proposal instructions, is it correct that a small business service vendor may include (and be evaluated on the basis of) the equipment manufacturing experience, product line and demonstration results of the large business manufacturer commercial supplier, consistent with numerous other sections of the RFP that promote this type of small business prime contracting arrangement?


	In accordance with Federal Acquisition Regulations, Section 19.502-2 (c), for small business set-asides other than for construction or services, any concern proposing to furnish a product that it did not itself manufacture must furnish the product of a small business manufacturer unless the SBA has granted either a waiver or exception to the nonmanufacturer rule (see 19.102(f)). In industries where the SBA finds that there are no small business manufacturers, it may issue a waiver to the nonmanufacturer rule (see 19.102(f)(4) and (5)).

Yes, a small business service vendor may include (and be evaluated on the basis of) the equipment manufacturing experience, product line and demonstration results of the manufacturer commercial supplier.  However, in accordance with FAR 19.502-2(c), if the small business service vendor furnishes the product of a large business, and the contract is deemed to be a small business set-aside, then this small/large business combination would not meet the requirements of FAR 19.502-2(c).

	13. Certification under ISO 9001 or NQA-1 (or equivalent) should be specified.

Software/hardware procurement and test – assures equipment is “fit for use” and meets all internal specifications.

Software development, test, and deployment – version control, verification testing, etc.

Procedures, test plans, laboratory tests and evaluation (by subcomponent).


	NQA-1 is applicable to equipment for nuclear facilities and is therefore not applicable to this procurement.  Please refer to question 1 regarding the QA Program.

	14.  The specifications are clearly noted as “commercial”, what is the required quality systems?  ISO 9001, NQA-1 etc?  Furthermore, will DOE O 414.1A be required?  

Comments on certification:  CE or UL Certification

Electrical safety, shock hazard in wet environments (ports).

EMF/EMI susceptibility.

Corrosion for salty environments.

Mechanical hazards – weight, wind, earthquake.



	NQA-1 is applicable to equipment for nuclear facilities and is therefore not applicable to this procurement.  Please refer to question 1 regarding the QA Program. No additional product certifications or markings are required.



	Comment on Safety:

15.  Does the product meet DOE/NNSA specifications for safety and Safety class system (or like).


	DOE/NNSA requirements for safety structures, systems, and components (SSCs), classified as safety-class SSCs, and safety significant SSCs are to ensure protection of the workers, the public, and the environment from hazards at DOE/NNSA facilities.  These requirements are applicable to reactor and non-reactor facilities including all DOE nonreactor nuclear facilities which are classified as Hazard Categories 1, 2, or 3; and explosives facilities and all DOE Hazard Category 1, 2, and 3 nuclear facilities.


The purpose of the Second Line of Defense (SLD) Program is to provide detection systems through an integrated and sustainable approach to minimize the risk of nuclear proliferation and terrorism through deterrence of illicit trafficking at international borders.  

As such, these requirements do not apply.

	16.  Comment on global scope:  A contract of this magnitude, to deploy systems in 45 countries, ought to have a significant component of service (preventive maintenance, 24-hour response, on-site service/repair, test and evaluation, etc.)


	Manufacturers will be required to provide a  warranty on equipment for a period of one year from installation.  Technical support will be provided through other means, if determined necessary, and is not included in this procurement. Please note that  there has been an extended warranty added as a line item in schedule B and is described in the SOW.

	17.  Comments on technology upgrades:  The specifications are so prescriptive that provisions for any type of technology upgrades are not discussed.


	Upgrades are not included in this requirement.  See response to question number 6.

	18.  If the contract is IDIQ for 5 or more years of systems, the contract will not allow NNSA to take advantage of new and improved methods. For example, the requirements are so simplified that one can meet them with “old fashioned” firmware on an EEPROM, a piece of plastic, 1MT, and 1He3 tube, scaling the system by detection capability for vehicles and trains.  If a vendor has decided to use current state-of-the-art technology software platforms and industrial embedded PCs because it will be easier to maintain, upgrade, and service, the current specifications do not favor that system because of higher cost – even though in the long run, state-of-the-art technology has the lowest life-cycle cost.  This procurement is only looking at cost of equipment and not life-cycle cost.


	In this contract, DOE/NNSA has specified a detector technology with a proven performance record in harsh environments.  The terms of the IDIQ contract give the government the flexibility to purchase equipment in quantities determined necessary.  If DOE/NNSA determines that other technologies are operationally advantageous in the future, they will be pursued separately. 

	19. Communications protocols and communication means are rapidly evolving in the industry towards more advanced and secure systems than the protocols described in the draft RFP.   For this RFP, will these more advanced and robust communication protocols be required? Also, will the equipment have to be RADNET compliant?
	The SLD Program system approach is to provide state of the art communication systems and protocols external to the monitor thereby focusing the monitor’s performance on material detection.   Communications systems are being supplied by others.

The RADNET standard was fundamentally developed to support safeguards applications and is not required for SLD applications.

	20.  Comments on intended requirements and protocols:  The equipment that is asked for is 1980's grade technology.  The requirements and specifications are important, but they are minimum requirements.  They do not take advantage of proven technology upgrades in the past 5 years.  For example:

(a) Adjustable and programmable settings/algorithms for independent neutron/gamma channel.

(b) Communications protocol and data logging protocol are inconsistent with “state of the art” technology data encryption, authentication, storage, retrieval, analysis.

(c) Energy windowing - for monitoring performance of the plastic scintillator, look at low and high-energy windows. Analyze signals dependent on energy in order to make more informed decisions on nature of alarm.  This requires the use of an MCA (Multi Channel Analyzer) at the output of the PMT, signal chain processing.

(d) Prescriptive plastic and He3 - no other technologies permitted.

(e) No requirements for diagnostics and certification for use - state of health, diagnostics, fit for use.

(f) Redundancy of electronics/detectors - It should specify that each panel contain redundant sub-components such that a single point failure will not render the system “out of service”.  This is generally seen as a positive specification. For example, 2 PMTs, 2He3 tubes, etc.

	In this contract, DOE/NNSA has specified a detector technology with a proven performance record in harsh environments.  If DOE/NNSA determines that other technologies are operationally advantageous in the future, they will be pursued separately.

(a)  The performance specifications require separate gamma and neutron alarms that are adjustable over the range from 2 sigma to 50 sigma.

(b)  Communications technologies that will be employed, including data encryption, authentication, storage, retrieval, and analysis is outside the scope of this contract.

(c)  Energy windowing has not proven itself as effective and reliable in a wide application such as the SLD Program.  The SLD model is to place large numbers of equipment in remote locations therefore it requires known and proven technologies.

(d)    The use of plastic scintillators as detectors is required because of maintenance and durability requirements that result from the monitors being installed in remote international locations.  The use of He-3 detectors is also a requirement of the Program.  Other known technologies have export control considerations.  Plastic scintillators and He-3 technologies are robust, heavily documented and cost effective. 

(e)  Correct, there are no additional requirements for diagnostics and certifications for use for this RFP.  State of Health is managed elsewhere.

(f)  This question highlights the need for quality, rugged equipment that will be installed in remote, international locations.  As such, a requirement for mean-time-between –failures data has been added to the RFP and will be an evaluation factor.  See Stage 3 Instructions, and Stage 3 Evaluation Criteria.   

	21. Is this going to be deployed under Price Anderson Amendments Act?
	No, PAAA indemnification does not apply.  

	22.  We intend to propose equipment of a foreign manufacturer. Does the “Buy American Act” clause in this solicitation preclude us from involvement in the bid and does it reduce our chances of success in this process?  Can the clause be waived since our company is an American company? 


	The “Buy American Act” is not applicable to this procurement and that clause has been removed from the RFP.  However, the Trade Agreement Act may be applicable depending on the location of the foreign manufacturer.  Procurements from “sensitive” foreign countries are not permitted.  

	23.  We would prefer to have a more clear description of "Tamper Indications" (Page 18, 25, and 32).


	Tamper indications consist of sensors that transmit a signal when the portal cabinet has been opened.

	24.  After the testing is complete, is there a possibility that the purchase will be divided among more than one company?  


	Yes, multiple awards are anticipated.

	25.  We would probably not wish to restrict the detectors to plastic scintillators, as other options exist.
	The use of plastic scintillators as detectors is required because of maintenance and durability requirements that result from the monitors being installed in remote international locations.  Also, please see # 20, part (d).

	26.  We feel the 3g Pu detection on a train is pretty 'challenging' [the IAEA spec for border monitoring states 10g Pu in a vehicle]
	We see no reason to modify this performance criterion as existing commercial detection equipment is capable of meeting it. 

	 27. a.  What is the purpose of the 0’s or 1’s in the following commands:  SN, TT, TC, & GX?

b) What is the “alpha” in the SN command?

c) Why do you not include a NL (neutron low) command?
	a. The SLD Program is utilizing multiple portal vendors, a communications contractor, and a construction contractor to implement the detector systems worldwide.  As such, a standardized communications protocol must be established for the vendor equipment supplied under this to communicate with a central alarm station or equipment supplied under other contracts.  The 0’s and 1’s are merely the output protocol specified.

b.  Alpha means the neutron false alarm rate.

c.  Although neutron background is anticipated to be low, a neutron low specification may be added.  Please note that this communications protocol is not complete, but is presented in the draft RFP to provide offerors a sample of the communications protocol that will be required.

	28.  Attachment A – Statement of Work

 Scope – page 11

  Your draft states, “The Contractor shall warrant the equipment with industry standards”.  Please define this time frame.
	The industry standard warranty was intended to imply the commercial standard warranty.  Since then, the need for an extended warranty has been identified.  The warranty period shall be one year from the date of installation.  Note that equipment may reside in a warehouse for up to two years prior installation.  This has been clarified in the statement of work and a separate CLIN has been added. Battery warranties will be from equipment acceptance and subject to shelf life criteria.

	29.  Attachment B – Special Nuclear Material Monitor Specifications - Nuisance Alarms – page 13

The statement that refers to the number of decisions per occupancy must be stated and must not be more than 5 decisions per second, is that 5 gamma and 5 neutron decisions per second?
	Neither gamma nor neutron shall make more than 5 decisions per second.

	30.  In reading the draft solicitation DE-RP52-04NA99615, we have found what we consider to be a serious flaw in the evaluation methodology.  

According to the current evaluation methodology of the procurement, it’s possible that by the end of Stage 2, NNSA will have determined that this procurement is a Total SBSA.  However, it’s also possible that the small businesses who have passed Stage 2 do not have adequate production capacity. As a consequence, it is possible that the process anticipated will result in several technically capable SB vendors at the end of Stage 2 evaluations, but none with adequate production capacity to meet the nation's needs by the end of Stage 3 thus forcing the NNSA to re-evaluate its need for Radiation Portal Monitors and/or reopening the solicitation for full and open competition.


	In accordance with FAR 19.502-2 (b)

The contracting officer shall set aside any acquisition over $100,000 for small business participation when there is a reasonable expectation that (1) offers will be obtained from at least two responsible small business concerns offering the products of different small business concerns (but see paragraph (c) of this subsection); and (2) award will be made at fair market prices.

The government’s preference is that all equipment installed at a given site to be of the same manufacturer.  Sites will vary significantly in equipment requirements and therefore the program is capable of utilizing manufacturers/vendors with varying production capacity.  

In Stage 2, the government may elect to test the equipment of all small business offerors before testing the equipment of large businesses.  If two or more small businesses are determined capable as a result of the performance testing the government may also elect to invite those successful Stage 2 small business offerors to enter Stage 3 before completion of the large business testing in order to expedite the small business set aside determination.  Should two or more small businesses emerge as capable of satisfying the government’s requirement; this procurement will be set aside for small businesses.  If two or more small businesses are not found to meet the government’s requirement, then the successful Stage 2 large business offerors will be invited to enter Stage 3.  After evaluation of the large businesses, a competitive range determination may be made among all successful Stage 3 small and large businesses.  




